UNITED STATES DEPARTMENIT OF AGRICULTURE

BEFORE THE SECRETARY OF AGRICULTURE ~ © - -
in e ) AWA Docket No. 09-0200
WILBUR D. DAVENPORT; MAXIMUS ;
“TONS QF FUN™ LLC, a Texas limited )
liability compatty. j

Responderits. ; COMPLAINT

There is reason to belleve that the respondents named herein have willfully violaed the
 Anfrmal Welfate Act, as amended (7 L.5.C. 52131 gt seq) (the “Act” or “AWA™, and the
regulations issued pursuant thereto (9 CF.R. § 1.1 ot seq.) (the “Regulations™), quere:fcre, the
Administrator of the Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service (“APHIS™), issucs this sorplaint

alleging the following:

JURISDICTIONAL ALLEGATIONS AND

AL TIONS REG, G THE SIZ RESPONDENTE" BUSTNES
THE GRAVITY OF THE ALLEGED V TION
RESP ENTS" GOOD FAITH AND COM CE HIST:

1. Respondent Maximus “Tons of Fun™ LLC (“MTF™), is a Texas limited liability
company (Number 300785967), whose mgistere& agent for serviee ofprucess is Judy Jacote. The
business address of the registered agent and the registered office address of respondent MTF is 704
3. Weaver Street, Gainsville, Texas 76246. On August 7, 2009, the Texas Secretary of State ordered
the corporate charter of respondent MTF forfeited for failure to :ﬁ]e a franchise tax retutn af dfor to
pay state franchise tax. At ail times mentioned herein, respondent MTF was operating; as an
exhibitor, as that term is defined in the Act and the Regulations, and held Animal Welfire Act

license number 74-C-0763.

2. Respondent Wilbur Davenport (“Davenport™ is an individual whose mailing sddress

is 106 Paducah. Livingston, Texas 77351. 3aid respondent is the “zovermning person” and sole
ra
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manager of respondent MTF. On its 2007, 2008, and 2009 license renewal applications submitied to
the complainant, respondent MTF identified respondent Davenport as the only person “authorized
t condust business” for respondent MTF, Az all times mentioned herein, respondent Davenprort was
(1) operating as an exhibitor, as that torm .is defined in the Act and the Regulations, and/or (2) acting
for or employed by an exhibitor or exhibitors (including without limitation respondent MTF), and
his acts, omissions or failures within the scope of his employment or office are, pursuant to section
2139 of the Act (7 U.S.C. § 2139}, deemed to be his own acts, omissions. or failures, as we 1 as the
acts, omissions, or failures of respondent MTF.

3 Respondents MTF and Davenport operate a moderately-sized animal exhibition
business, exhibiting, and leasing for exhibition, three fomale elephants: Jewel, Tina, and Boo (also
known as “Queenie’™).

4. The gravity of the violations alleged in this complaint is gteat. They include rzpeated
instances in which réspondcnts failed to handle the elephants as carefully as possible, failed during
exhibition to ensurc the safety of the animals and the publie, failed to provide mimmally-acleguate
veterinary care to the clephants, and fafled to adequately feed the elephants, to the extent that, by
July 2009, one of the elephants {Jewel) was in serious physical condition and was sufferiny to the
extent that required confiscation of the animal By complainant on August 15, 2009,

5. Respondents have not shown good faith. They have repeatedly demonstrited an
unwillingness to cnmplj;r with the Act and the Regulations and Standards, after having been ¢ dvised
of deficiencies. In August 2007, respondents were advised by aveterinary consuhant with expertise
in elephants to have the clephants weighed to monitor the animals’ health and wel - heing.

Neverthelegs, respondents repeatedly failed to do so during 2008 and 2009, On or about . une 7.
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2009, regpondent Davenport amnounced to an APHIS inspector that he “was not going to weigli them
anymore.” On June 22, 2009, APHIS advised respondents in writing that respondents’ contir..u.ing to
transport the clephants for uss in respondents’ circus act and respondents’ elephant ride con:ession
against the recommendation of a qualified veterinarian would constitute a violation of the
Regulations.

6. On August 13, 2009, after conducting an inspection of respondents’ Facility and
clephants, complainant notified respondents that it intended to confiscate Jewel, pursuant to section
16 of the Act (7 U.8.C. § 2146) and section 2.129 of the Regulations (9 C.F;R. § 2.129). Upon
tespondents’ failure to corrcet the conditions and alleviate the animal’s suffering and distress,
APHIS served a notice of confiscation on respondents on August 15, 2009, and on August 2¢, 2009,
APHIS ultimately took possession of Jewsl along with another elephant (Tina) that respondent
Wilbur Davenport voluntarily relinquished Tina to the U.S. Department of Agriculiure, as partofa
settlement of a pending .5, Fish & Wildlife proceeding against him.

ALL VIOLATIONS
A. Licensing

1. On August 11, 2009, August 13, 2009, August 15, 2009, and August 20, 2008,
respondent MTF, through its principal and agent, respondent Davenport, repeated|y interfere d with,
threatcned, abused, and harassed APHIS officials in the course of cartying out their duties, in willfu]
violation of section 2.4 of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.4).

2. On August 15, 2009, respondent MTF, through its agents, interfered with, thredtened,
abused. and harassed APMIS officials in the course of carrying out their duties, and specifically, said

respondent, having been natified that APHIS had confisaated T ewol, interfered with APHIS s ability
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to remove Jewel from respondents’ fac‘llity in a manner designed to ensure the safcly of the
elephant, USDA | officials, and the general public, in willful vielation of scetion 2.4 of the
Regulations (8 C.FR. § 2.4).

3 On August 20. 2009, respondent MTF. through its agents, interfered with, threatened,
abused, and hatassed APHIS officials in the course of carrving out their duties, and specifical v, said
respondent attempted to block APHIS from entering respondents” facility to remove Jevrzl, in
willful viotation of section 2.4 of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.4).

B.  Vetzrinery Care |

1. On March 17, 2008, nt‘Phoenix Marketplace, Phoenix, Arizonz, APHIS officials
inspected respondents” records and determined that respondents had failed to have their attanding
veterinarian provide adequate veterinary care to rasﬁqn.dcnts-‘ animals, failed to ensure that their
attending veterinarian had ap'pfopriatﬂ authority to provide adequate vetcrinary care to respondents’
animals, and failed to maintain a program of adequate veterinary care that included the uge of
appropriate methods to prevent and diagnose disease; and specifically (1) although respoudents’
written program of veterinary care (“PYC™) provides that fecal examinations will be taken c:fth.ree
elephants (Jewel, Tina, and Boo) at least every three to four months, nong had been taken for Jewel
and Tina for over seven months, or for Boo for over five months; (2) although respondents® PVC
provides that the three elephants will be vaccinated annually for clostridium, tetanus and West Nile
virus, and avery three jrcars for rabies, respondents had no records indicating that such vaccitmtions
had been given, in willful viclation of sections 2.40(a), 2.40(a)(2), and 2.40(b)(2) of the Regulations
(9 C.F.R. §§ 2.40(z), 2.40(2)(2}, 2.40(b)(2)).

2. On April 9, 2008, in Los Angeles, California, APHIS officials inspected respor dents’
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records and determined that respondents had failed to have their attending veterinarian arovide
adequate veterinary care to respondenmts’ animals, had failed to ensure that their attending
veterinarian had appropriate authority to provide adequate veterinary care to respondente’ animals,
and had failed to matntain a program of adequate veterinary carz that ineluded the use of appropriate
methods t prevent and diagnose discase; and specificatly, although respondents’ PVC provided that
Jeviel, Tina and Boo would be vaceinated annually for clostridium, tetanus and Wc.st Nile vitus, and
every three years for rabies, respondents had no records indicating that such vaccinations hed been
given, in willful viglation of sectidns_ 2.40(a), 2.40(2)(2), and 2.40(b)(2) of the Regulations (D CER.
§9 2.40(a), 2.40(a)(2), 2.40(b)(2)).

3. OnNovember22, 2008, at Shea Stadium, Queens, New York, respondents hacl failed
to maintain a program of adequate veterinary care that ineluded the use of appropriate methods to
prevent and diagnose dissase; and specifically, although Jewel and Tina had documented weight
loss, respondents had failed to have them weighed, and continued to exhibit them ag part of
respoiidents’ animal act and elephant ride concession, in wiliful violation of section 2.30(0)(2 of the
Regulations (9 CF.R, § 240(5)(2)).

4, On April 4, 2009, at Shrinc Cireus, Greenville, South Caroling, respondents had
failed to maintain a program of adequate veterinary care that ineluded the use of appropriate
methods to prevent and diagnose disease; and specifically, although two of the elephaiis in
respondents’ custody {Jewel and Tina) had documented, chronic, and visible weight 1oss,
respondents had failed to have the elephants weighed and failed to have their attendin gireterinmrian
(or any other qualified veterinarian) examine the elephants, in wiliful violation of section 2.40/h)(2)

of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.40(b)(2)).
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5. On June 7, 2009, at Shriner’s Cireus, Love’s Park, [llinols, respondents had failed ta
maintain 2 program of adequate veterinary care that included the usc of approptiate methods io
prevent and diagnose discasze; and specifically, although two of the elephants in resporndents’
custody (Jewel and Tina) had documented, chronie, and visible weight lass, respondents had failed
to have the elephants weighed and failed to have their attending veterinarian {or any other qualified
veterinarian) examine the elephants, in willful vielation of section 2.40(b)(2) of the Regulations (9
C.EF.R. § 2.40(b)(2)).
6. From July 10, 2009, through August 13, 2009, at Livingston, Tcxas, respondents
failed to provide adequate veterinary care to the animals in their custody, and failed to maintain a
program of adequate veterinary care that included the use of appropriate methods to control and treat
disease; and specifically, although Jewel had been diagnosed as having overgrown lower molirs that
prevented her from properly masticatin;g food, and respondents were advised to have Jewel’s dental
pmblems. corrected at the earliest opportunity, respondents failed and refused to follow that
recommendation, and on August 11, 2009, respondent Davenport infnrmf:d APHIQ officials that he
did not intend to have any dental procedure performed on Jewel, to correct her diagrosed dental
problem, in willful violstion of sections 2.40(x) and 2.40(b}2) of the Regulations (9 C.ER. §§
2.40(8), 2.40(6)(2)).
7. On August 11, 2009, at Livingston, Texas, APHIS officials inspected respondents’
animals and records, determined that respondents had failed to maintain a prograim of adequate
veterinary care that included the use of appropriate methods to prevent and diagnose disease and a
mechatism of direct and frequent communication with respondents’ veterinarian, and specifically,

although respondents had been advised by their veterinary eonsultant to provide him with both
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results of blood tests, and the current weights of the three animals {Tewel, Tina and Boo),
respondents had failed to pravide both blood test results and weights, in willful violation of sections
2.40(b)(2} and 2.40(b}(3) of the Regulations (9 C.F R. §3 2.40(b)(2), 2.40(b)(3)).
C. Access

1, On August 15, 2009, respondents failed and refused to allow APH1S officials to enter
their place of business, during normal business hours, atd specifically, respondents blocked the
entrance of their facility and refused to provide APHIS with aceess to respondents’ animals and
facilities, in willful violation of section 2146(a) of the Act (7 U.S.C. §21 46(&))“smd section o' 126 of
the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.126), |

2. On August 20, 2009, respondents failed and refused to allow APHIS officials to atiter
their place of business, during nottmal business hours, and specifically, respondents blocked the
entrance of their facility and refused to allow APHIS officials to enter the premises to remove Jewel
for severa] hours, in willﬁ] violation of section 2146(#) of the Aet (7 U.5.C. § 2146(a}) and section
2.126 of the Regulations (9 CF.R. § 2.126).
D. Handling

1. On March 17, 2008, at Phoenix Marketplace, Phoenix, Arizona, regpondents, during
puh]icIMibition__ failed to handie animals (Jewel, Tina and Boo) so there was minimal risk ¢f harm
to the animals and to the public, with sufficient distance and/or bare; ers between the animals .ind the
general viewing public so as to assure the safety of anirals and the public, in willful viclation of
section 2.131(c)(1) of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.131(g)(1)).

2. On March 7, 2009, at Indiana Coliseurn, Indianapolis, Indiana, respondents faled to

handle elephants (Tewe!, Tina and Boo) as carefully as possible in a mammer that does not cause
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behavioral stress, physical harm, or unnecessary diseomfort, and apecifically. respondents offered
elephant rides to the public using three adult elephants it a small, enclosed area (one of the three
cireus rings) wherein one of the elepharts (Boo) fell injuring her left front leg and causing the
platform that respondents used to load customers ongo ¢lephants to collapse, injuring approx ‘mately
thirtecn people, in willful violation of section 2.131(b)(1) of the Regulations (? C.F.R. §
2.131(b)(1)).

3. OnMarch 7, 2009, at Indiana Coliseum, Indianapolis, Indiana, respondents, during
public exhibition, failed to handie animals (Jewe!, Ting and Boo) so there wase minimal risk of harm
to the animals and to the public, with sufficient di.stanm and/or barrjers between the animals and the
~ general viewing public 5o as to assure the safety of animals and the public, in wiliful violation of
section 2.131(c)(1) of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.131(e)(1)).

4. On April 4, 2009, at Shritte Circus, Greenville, South Carolina, respondents failed to
handle two elephants (Jewel and Boo) as carefully ag possible in a manner that does not cause
behavioral stress, physical harm, or unnecessary discomfort, and specifically, respondents, while
offering elephant rides 1o the public usin g one elephant (Tina), left two other elephants unatterded i
an outdoor area that would permit access to the animals by any passcrby, in wiltful violation of
section 2.131(k)(1) of the Regulations (9 C.FR. § 2.131 {(b)1)).

D, FEajlyre to Comply With Standards

1. OnNovember22, 2008, at Shea Stadium, Queens, New York, respondents wi Ifully
violated section 2.100(a) of the Regulations by failing to mest the minimum facilities and operating
standards for animals other then dogs, cats, rabbits, hamsters, guinea pigs, nonhuman primate:s and

marine thammals (9 C.F.R. §§ 3. 125-3.142), as foltows:
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a. Respondents failed to store supplies of food in a manner that ade quately
protected them from deterioration, and specifically, allowed condensation to drip into food
containers (9 C.F.R. § 3.125(c)).

b. Respondents failed to ensure that housing facilitics for animals wore
sufficient]y regulated by heating to protect three elephants from extreme temperaturcs, and
respondents allowed ambient temperatures to fall below temperatures compatible with the
health and comfort of the elephants (9 C.F.R. § 3.126(a)).

e. Respondents failed to keep premises clean, and specificaily, the 1i ghting
fixture in respondents® food storage area was mildewed and bore accumulated dirt (9 C.F.R.
§ 3.131(e)).

2. On August 11, 2008, and August 15, 2009, at Livingston, Texas, respoadents
willfully violated section 2.100¢a) of the Regulations by failing to meet the Standards (QCER. 5§
3.125-3.142), and specifically. respondents failed to provide to elephants food of sufficient quantity
and nutritive value, and appropriate for the animals’ 8ge, species, condition, size and typs, and
ability to masticate (9 C.F.R. § 3.1 29¢a)).

WHEREFORE, it is hereby ordered that for the purpose of determining wheth:r the
respondents have in fact willfully violated the Act and the regulations issued under the Act, this
complaint shall be served upon the respondents. The respondents shall file an angwer with the
Hearing Cletk, United States Department of Agriculturs, Waghington, D.C. 20250-9200, in
accordznee with the Rules of Practice governing proceedings under the Act (7 C.F.R. §1.130 et
$€d.). Failure to file an answer shall constitute an admisgion of sll the matcrial allegations of this

complaint,
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The Anitnal ahd Plant Heaith Inspection Service requests that unless the respondens fail to
file an answer within the time allowed therefor, or file an answer admitting ali the nateria)
allegations of this complaint, this proceeding be set for expedited oral heari ng i conformity with the
Rules of Practice gaverning proceedin gs underthe Act: and that such order or orders be issued as are
authorized by the Act and warranted under the circumsianses, including an order that regpondents
¢ease and desist from violating the Act and the regulations and standards issued thereunder,
assessing civil penalties against respondents in accordance with section 19 of the Act (7 US.C
§ 2149), and revoking AWA license 74-C-0762.

Done at Washington, D.C.
this 25" 1day of September __ 2009

_44,(‘_‘5 ‘/é dministrator

Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service

COLLEEN A, CARROLL

Attorney for Complainant

Qffice of the General Counsel

United States Department of Agticulture
Washington, D.C. 20250-1400 '
Telephone (202) 720-6430

FAX: (202) 690-4299

£-inail: cgl!een.carroll@usda.gov
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